

Funded by the Horizon 2020 Framework Programme of the European Union



CAPTURE LEARNING REPORT

KEA EUROPEAN AFFAIRS May 2018

Authors:

Teodora Pletosu Clémentine Daubeuf Sergio Goffredo

Contents	
1.INTRODUCTION	3
2.METHODOLOGICAL APPROACH	5
3. SAMPLE OF RESPONDENTS: SOCIO-DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS	13
4. ASSESSMENT OF PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT	20
4.1 Interest in the topic	20
4.2 Understanding of the topic	21
4.3 Participation in the discussion	21
4.4 Willingness to participate in future similar events	22
5. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT	25
5.1 Respondents' perspective on suitable societal actors to play a in RRI	ı role 25
5.2 Willingness to organise future similar events	27
5.3 Multi-actor dialogue	27
5.4 Number and types of involved stakeholders per venue	29
6. SUCCESSFUL PRACTICES	31
6.1 Venues' adequacy	31
6.2 Formats' interactivity	33
7. CONCLUSION	36
ANNEX I: Definitions of terms	38
ANNEX II: database of local stakeholder organisations interested	l in
participating in RRI processes	40
ANNEX III: Exhibition and activities questionnaires	47
VISITOR QUESTIONNAIRE FOR THE EXHIBITION - ADULTS	47
VISITOR QUESTIONNAIRE FOR THE EXHIBITION –YOUNG PEOPLE	52
PARTICIPANT QUESTIONNAIRE FOR ACTIVITIES	4
ANNEX IV: Template for local organisers	9

1.INTRODUCTION

Sparks – Rethinking innovation together is a European project aiming to promote and develop science engagement and education among European citizens, as part of the wider concept of Responsible Research and Innovation (RRI). RRI defines a transparent and interactive process in which the research community along with industries, citizens and politicians become mutually responsible for scientific and technological advances, taking into consideration their ethical acceptability, sustainability and social desirability, in order to properly better embed them in the society.

RRI initiatives seek to bring issues related to research and innovation into the public space, in order to decrease the distance between science and society and to actively involve citizens in discussions and debates on how science and technology can help create a more peaceful, fair and inclusive world.

Sparks is a project to familiarise and engage European citizens with the concept and practice of RRI through the topic of **technology shifts in health and medicine**. More concretely, Sparks aims to:

- Communicate the benefits and challenges of using emerging technologies in healthcare and medicine via a touring exhibition that was presented in 28 EU countries and showed 7 individual stories of citizen scientists, creative and disruptive visions of artists on the topic and local case studies
- Actively involve EU citizens, scientists and innovators in discussions around health and well-being through specially designed activities and workshops (reverse science cafés, science espressos, pop-up science shops, incubation and scenario workshops and hackathons)

Objectives of the present report

The present report marks the end of the Sparks project after 3 years of travelling of the exhibition, showcasing local success stories and engaging citizens and local stakeholders in brainstorming, debates and hands-on activities on the topic of health and its emerging technologies. As such, the **report's main objective** is to **conceptualise the knowledge acquired in the project**, in order to contribute to **the development of a wider Responsible Research and Innovation governance framework across Europe**.

To this end, the report presents the results of the empirical research undergone throughout the project with the purpose of measuring Sparks outcomes in 3 main conceptual areas:

- **Public engagement** with Sparks topic
- **Stakeholders** (education, administration, government, business) **engagement** with Sparks topic
- Successful tools/practices used to communicate to and engage citizens in the project

Additionally, the report highlights Sparks' **EU added-value** in the implementation of the wider concept of RRI which reflects in the local and overall outcomes of the project in relation with each of the 3 concepts mentioned above.

Moreover, the report provides information on the research methodology and on the limits and the difficulties encountered during the data collection and analysis in order to **provide recommendations for researchers involved** in similar science engagement projects and on the wider implementation of RRI.

2.METHODOLOGICAL APPROACH

As mentioned above, the research activity was developed within the project under the Work Package 4 'Capture Learning and Policy Outreach' in order to evaluate Sparks' success in relation to the engagement of citizens and different stakeholders in science debates on the topic of health and technology. The research was designed and carried out by KEA European Affairs.

Before informing on the methodological framework, data collection and analysis and main findings, one crucial aspect needs to be highlighted in relation to the **highly experimental nature of the research**, due to the novelty of the objects and topics of investigation. The formats of the Sparks activities and workshops (i.e. *Reverse Science Café, Science Espresso, Pop-up Science Shop, Scenario and Incubation Workshops*) were specially designed for the project, combining interactive elements to engage participants in idea sharing and debates. The exhibition's concept is also unique, aligning personal success stories of engagement in science and disruptive visions of artists on ways the future could be affected by the use of emerging technologies. The large scale on which Sparks was implemented, targeting citizens from all cultural and educational backgrounds, ages and genders across Europe contributes to the complexity and uniqueness of the initiative. Finally, the very concept of RRI reflected in Sparks' objective to engage citizens and different stakeholders in science developments around healthcare is still emerging and highly experimental.

As such, the research can only inform on emerging trends observed in relation to how citizens and different stakeholders reacted to and engaged with the topics, activities and success stories presented in Sparks. It will by no means provide strong causations between different variables, but merely correlations observed from the respondents' positioning in the surveys and from the more in-depth inputs provided by the project's local partners.

Therefore, the results made available in the present report can be used as a starting point in the development of a **stronger scientific and governance framework** to host and further promote the concept of RRI across Europe, so that all societal actors could benefit and contribute more to the shaping of research and innovation.

2.1. Conceptual framework

The research was conducted with citizens who visited the exhibition and participated in the activities organised in the frame of the project¹, as well as with Sparks local organisers. The investigated samples are as follows:

• **2608 respondents** out of a total of more than 1 million of individuals (1.111.504) who visited the exhibition in 26 venues across Europe²;

 $^{^{\}rm l}$ Reverse Science Cafés, Science Espressos, Pop-up Science Shops, Scenario and Incubation Workshops

 $^{^2}$ The total number of visitors does not encompass the number of visitors in Hungary and Lithuania, since these venues did not measure attendance to the exhibition. However, these two countries are still part of the sample since the questionnaires' data have been collected.

- **1754 respondents** out of a total of 6653 individuals who participated in activities in 24 venues across Europe³;
- 27 local organisers across Europe⁴.

In order to obtain this sample number, local organisers were advised to gather responses from around **100 visitors** of the exhibition and **around 60 participants** in activities. Some venues collected more than the advised average of responses and some collected less, due to reasons which will be detailed in section 2.5 of the present report, dedicated to presenting the limits of the research.

In order to measure the project's success in the 3 conceptual areas referred to in section 1, a series of 10 indicators was developed which helped to structure the data collection tools and the data analysis (the investigative methods used in this research are presented in details in section 2.2). The table below presents the indicators in relation to the investigated conceptual areas. It equally points to the exact questions informing on the indicators from the surveys used to collect opinions.

CONCEPTUAL	CORRESPONDING	CORRESPONDING
AREAS OF	INDICATORS	QUESTIONS IN THE SURVEYS
INVESTIGATION		
	Interest in the topic	Exhibition: Q2.1, Q2.2, Q2.3,
		Q5.1
		Activities: Q3.1, Q3.2, Q6.1
	Understanding of the	Exhibition: Q1.3, Q2.4, Q5.5
	topic	Activities: Q2.5, Q3.3, Q6.5
Public engagement	Participation in the	Exhibition: Q1.1, Q5.3, Q5.4
	discussion	Activities: Q2.1, Q3.5, Q3.6, Q3.7,
		Q3.8, Q6.3, Q6.4
		TLO: Sect.2, Q1, Q2, Q4
	Willingness to participate	Exhibition: Q4
	in future similar events	Activities: Q5
		TLO: Sect2, Q3
	Identification of the most	Exhibition: Q3
	suitable actors in RRI	Activities: Q4
Staboldors	Willingness to organise	TLO: Sect.3, Q10
ongagomont	future similar events	
engagement	Multi-actor dialogue	TLO: Sect.3, Q5
	Number of involved	TLO: Annex2, Sect.1
	stakeholders per venue	
	Venues' adequacy	Exhibition: Q6

Table 1: Conceptual framework of the research

³ Bulgaria, Czech Republic, Italy, Ireland and Romania have not provided the survey.

⁴ The template from Czech Republic was not received and the information provided in the template from Bulgaria is largely incomplete.

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

		Activities: Q3.4, Q7
		+ descriptive documents
Successful tools /		prepared by certain venues
practices		emphasising situations conducive
		/ non-conducive to dialogue
	Formats' interactivity	TLO: Sect.2, Q5.9

The research also informs on the following **socio-demographic characteristics** of the sample:

- Age group
- Gender
- Education
- Employment
- Sector of activity

These socio-demographic variables are used in the analysis in cross-tabulations with the variables informing on the indicators in the conceptual framework, in order to observe **possible** correlations between the different levels of education, age, employment, gender and sector of activity and the engagement with the topics promoted by Sparks.

2.2. Methods used

To this purpose, a **mixed research method** was used, combining quantitative and qualitative approaches. As such, two data collection tools were created:

- A **questionnaire** to collect anonymous input from Sparks exhibition's visitors and activities' participants. This tool generated **measurable data** used to quantify attitudes, levels of interest and participation in relation to Sparks events.
- A template (TLO) to collect input from Sparks local organisers. The tool equally produced measurable data used to quantify certain attitudes and impressions and collected additional insights, motivations and opinions regarding the organisation of the events and how they developed. Each template consists of two annexes: while the first one applies to the activities, the second refers to the local partnerships, the exhibition and the communication. The first annex, divided into three sections, consist of 10 questions combining both qualitative and quantitative type of responses. Each partner has been requested to fill in an Annex I per each chosen activity, among which the evaluations of two (out of six) Science Espressos and the Reverse Science Café were mandatory formats of activities in the project. The Annex II is also divided into three sections, whose questions require both qualitative and quantitative type of responses.

These data collection tools were distributed as follows:

- For the visitors of the exhibition:
 - One questionnaire dedicated to adults

- One questionnaire dedicated to persons aged 12-18
- For the participants in activities:
 - One questionnaire dedicated to adults
 - One questionnaire dedicated to persons aged 12-18
- For local organisers:
 - \circ One questionnaire

The questionnaires were distributed in each venue where Sparks was organised. The questionnaires for the exhibition's visitors were made available electronically on two tablets that travelled with the exhibition. The questionnaires for the participants in activities were distributed on paper.

2.3. Data collection and centralisation techniques

The electronic surveys were managed via **Open Data Kit (ODK)**, an open source set of tools which helps designing and fielding mobile data collection solutions. The questionnaires were built on the ODK platform and uploaded on a Sparks dedicated server from which local organisers could download them on the tablets via a Data collection app. The visitors were next interviewed by being presented the questionnaire on the tablets. The filled-in questionnaires were then sent back to the Sparks server via the app installed on the tablet. The responses were exported into readable files with **.CSV format**, before being centralised for the overall analysis.

The paper questionnaires destined for the participants in activities were filled in by hand. Next, the local organisers engaged in a reporting activity, by inserting all answers into a **reporting template created in Excel** which finally was sent back to KEA. The reporting files received were transformed into the same CSV format and afterwards centralised for the overall analysis.

2.4. Data analysis techniques

In order to proceed with the analysis of data, all CSV files (i.e. responses collected per venue and final centralised files for all venues per activities and exhibition surveys) were imported into **Google Fusion Tables**, an experimental web application to gather, organise, query and visualise data tables. As such, an analysis of both the outcomes of the exhibition and activities could be carried out at both local level and at overall EU level.

The tables obtained in such fashion were **queried** (i.e. filtered and summarised by several variables in order to calculate the **spread of data values** and the **central tendencies of the distribution of values**). These calculations helped establish the **tendencies of responses** in all the three main groups of indicators referred to in section 2.1. The obtained summaries were **cross-tabulated** in order to investigate the **correlations between different variables**. The findings will be detailed in the next section.

2.5. Limits of the research

The research was challenged by the **large geographical scale of the project**, which generated several difficulties in the management of the data collection across all venues in Europe, in terms of training, capacity, language barriers and centralisation. The main challenges of the research are listed and further detailed below:

- Timeframe of survey design
- Limited control over the data collection
- Language barriers
- External factors

a. Timeframe of survey design

In accordance with the timeline of the project, the 'Methodological Framework' (Deliverable 4.1) and 'Survey and template methodology and guidelines for local organisers' (Deliverable 4.2) were developed in parallel to the Concept of the Exhibition (Deliverable 2.2) by the Science Museum London and the 'Guidelines on how to implement the innovative formats of science cafés and optional participatory activities' (Deliverable 3.1) by Copernicus Science Centre and WILA (Science Shops Bonn).

This **concomitant timeframe limited the scope for phrasing precise questions**, especially on the exhibition with a higher risk of misleading or confusing questions for the audience.

Resolution: the research team designed the surveys in constant consultation with the partners responsible for the development of the exhibition and activities. Testing surveys during the first tour of the exhibition allowed to identified potential limits to the wording of questions and reword some of them to facilitate their understanding by the audience without introducing new questions that would have prevented comparison with other venues in the future.

Recommendations for future research:

Although the methodological framework including research questions, key indicators and data collection tools can be prepared from the inception of the project, it is advised to design data collection tools when the exhibition and activities to which they will apply are finalised in order to ensure the maximum level of adequacy and avoid misleading wording or inconsistencies.

b. Limited control over the data collection

The large number of venues where Sparks travelled to reflects a wide social and cultural diversity. This translated into considerable effort from KEA to train the organisers in distributing the questionnaires, collecting answers on the tablet and on paper and reporting them in a consistent way. At the same time, **the distance and the number of intermediates** between the researchers and the respondents (i.e. the event managers who receive the information on data

collection, the interviewers on the field, the persons who centralise the answers and report back to KEA researchers) made it **difficult to control the entire process of data collection and reporting**.

As such, several reporting files that KEA received on the paper version questionnaires **were incomplete** (i.e. lacking answers to one or several questions), possibly due to omissions upon filling-in by respondents or to interviewers or data managers' negligence. In what concerns the tablet questionnaires, there were cases where several responses were lost due either to **technical issues with the tablets** (which could not be resolved in time, due to the distance and lack of understanding of the whole issue by KEA researchers) or due to **wrong manipulation** of data by the local managers (who possibly did not correctly understand the guidelines to use the tablets). For what concerns the template for local organisers, it has also been registered that some templates have not been entirely filled. This is mainly due to omissions or negligence in filling in the templates by the data managers.

The data centralisation thus reported a certain percentage of responses deemed as 'incomplete/with problems' due to the above-mentioned difficulties. These questionnaires could not be used in the final analysis. The table below presents the situation in numbers.

QUESTIONNAIRE	'INCOMPLETE / WITH PROBLEMS'	FINAL 'COMPLETE'
Exhibition	5,8% (160)	2608
Activities	8,5% (164)	1754

Table 2: percentage of problematic responses

Resolution: Additional detailed guidelines on the use of the data collection tablets and software were produced to complete the data collection training session delivered to local organisers. The research team systematically asked local organisers to perform and send in-house tests of the surveys on tablets so that they would become familiar with the process and reduce the risk of error during the transmission of the data. Overall, the local organisers sent enough filled-in questionnaires, so subtracting the number of 'problematic' responses did not impact the relevancy of the final sample.

Recommendations for future research

It is very important that the research team is constantly in contact with the team of local organisers, in order to ensure that the guidelines are correctly understood and that the data collection is advancing as planned. Testing the functionality of the tablets before the interviews is recommended (i.e. organisers to send dummy filled-in questionnaires to the research team via the tablets to ensure that there are no technical issues). It is overall recommended to ask for mid-term updates (i.e. an update on the issues encountered and the number of responses collected at the mid-period of exhibition duration) in order to have time to address the eventual issues.

c. Language barriers

Collecting data via questionnaires across several countries raises the issue of **text comprehension in several languages**. As such, the questionnaires were translated from English into the local language by the local organisers for each venue. The encountered problem was of semantic nature, as some words or expressions used in the original English version were **translated differently in different languages** or even in the same languages but in different countries (e.g. French in France, Belgium and Luxembourg, Dutch in the Netherlands and Belgium, German in Germany and Luxembourg), according to the cultural use of language. This may have caused a slight change in meaning across venues, which could have altered / influenced the way respondents understood and answered to the questions.

Resolution: This was considered as a normal (and expected) development in the data collection, which actually informed on the cultural diversity across Europe. It is only normal that the different cultural backgrounds influence the way individuals understand and solve an issue. The translations could furthermore provide useful insights on how different cultures and societies position themselves in relation to the topic of healthcare and medicine in the wider concept of RRI.

Recommendations for future research

A good communication between the research team and local organisers is key for the proper understanding of the text and thus, for the most appropriate translation of key terms or expressions.

d. External factors

In addition to the issues arisen from the distance and high number of intermediaries, the process of data collection was also hampered by external factors which could not have been prevented during the exhibition time. **High temperatures during summer and holiday periods** were sometimes identified as factors which prevented people from visiting the exhibition or participating in the activities, **the inadequacy of venues destined to activities** (e.g. small or noisy spaces, venues targeted for niche audience such as families or children) could put the visitors / participants in the impossibility to respond to the survey due to low / lack of understanding of the topic. These factors explain some low number of visitors or responses received from some venues.

Recommendations for future research:

The low participation issues generated by these unexpected external factors provided a good learning exercise for improving the organisation of such type of events in the future. Ensuring that the event dates do not coincide with local or European holidays or with extreme temperatures in some geographical areas, or that host venues have audiences which are appropriate with the audiences targeted by the event are just some examples of a better, more thoughtful organisation.

3. SAMPLE OF RESPONDENTS: SOCIO-DEMOGRAPHIC CHARACTERISTICS

As mentioned in section 2.1, the analysed sample of responses originates from 2334 exhibition visitors from 22 locations across Europe and from 1475 participants in activities from 20 EU venues, correlated with the insightful input of 18 local organisers.

Graph 1 shows the repartition of respondents per type of Sparks activity. A large majority of responses were collected for the **Science Espressos** and to a lesser degree for the **Reverse Science Cafés**⁵. It should be noted that the organisation of these two types of activities was mandatory in each venue. Graph 1 does not consider those events which were organised in just one venue, as it is the case of the Hands-on Workshop (Portugal) and the Guided Tours of the Exhibition (Luxembourg).



Graph 1: Respondents' repartition per type of activity

This section is meant to provide useful socio-demographic information on the respondents, showing that the sample proved balanced in terms of **gender and age repartition** at different **levels of education and employment status** and in terms of represented **age categories** and is overall representative of the total population who participated in the Sparks event.

Tables 3 and 4 below show the general repartition of respondents in terms of age, gender, level of education, employment status and sector of activity.

⁵ This is largely due to the fact that only one Reverse Science Café was organized in each location, while there were 6 science espressos.

	5 51				•					
	AG	E	GENI	DER	EDUCAT	ION	EMPLOYMENT		ACTIVITY	
Exhibition	13-17	411	Female	1419	Primary	425	Science	617	Civil society	337
Activities		151		976		259	related	644	organisation	334
Exhibition	18-26	809	Male	1083	Secondary	797	No science	953	Education	731
Activities		493		719		500	related	512		545
Exhibition	27-64	1304	Other	14	Higher	1228	Unemployed	261	Research	375
Activities		903		10		754		240		356
Exhibition	> 65	84	Secret	92	Doctoral	156			Industry/Business	346
Activities		98		36		187				289
Exhibition									Government/Public	211
Activities									administration	214

Table 3: general socio-demographic characteristics of the sample

Table 4: total number of underaged and adult respondents

	Young (12-18)	Adults	TOTAL
Exhibition	754	1854	2608
Activities	325	1429	1754
TOTAL	1079	3283	4362

The figures in Table 3 and 4 show, as expected, that the active individuals (27-64) were the most represented (50% among the exhibition's visitors and 51,5% among the participants in activities). Nevertheless, underaged individuals occupy also a significant share of 15,7% in the sample for the exhibition. The sample for activities displayed a lesser share of underaged respondents (only 8,6%).

There is a **prevalence of women respondents**, who are more numerous both as visitors of the exhibition and as participants in activities.

In what concerns the level of education, most respondents have higher education for both activities and exhibition, while doctoral studies are the least represented, aspect which recreates the larger societal pattern that characterises nowadays city dwellers across Europe. The significant numbers of primary and secondary levels of education reflect the high presence of underaged individuals and are not a sign of low levels of education at adult ages (as showed the cross-tabulation between age and levels of education).

We observe a concentration of individuals employed in **non-science related fields among visitors of the exhibition** and mostly individuals working in **science fields as participants in activities**. These differences related to the nature of employment show that while the exhibition appealed to a wider part of the population (regardless of their profession), participation in the **activities tended to attract more prepared individuals, with specific scientific background**, thus in close relation to the topic of science, technology and healthcare. A similar comment can be made regarding the **doctoral level of education**, which, although overall low represented, showed a higher concentration among participants in the activities (highly prepared individuals in a certain sector) and thus lesser disparities between numbers of representatives of different levels of education, compared to the exhibition's visitors. This

situation could highlight the fact that the exhibition was intended as an 'entry point' to science engagement, thus attracting a wider audience, whereas the activities appealed mostly to people already engaged in science.

While this aspect has the potential to mark a trend in the way people perceive the different activities and exhibition in relation to the level of their professional preparation, the noticed differences in numbers and clusters of categories are not substantial enough to bias the surveys' results towards a more 'scientific-educated' approach towards the topic presented.





Respondents **displayed significant interest in the topics of science and health**. The large majority of the exhibition sample has indicated a strong interest in science (approximately 78%) and only 21% have shown a slight interest while the other responses - such as no interest at all or no opinion on the issue - registered insignificant percentages. Moreover, 78% of the respondents showed a strong interest in health, and only 19% showed a slight interest in this topic. This strong interest is replicated in the activities' sample: around 85% of respondents declared they were interested in science and 82% in health, while only 12% showed slight interest in the strong interest in both these topics.

The graphs below summarise the results regarding the sample interest in science and health for both activities and exhibition.



Graphs 4, 5: Sample responses in relation to their interest in science and health



Interestingly, the research revealed a correlation between the respondents' level of education and their declared interest in science and health related topics, for both the exhibition and activities. As such, a high interest in these topics was generally noticed at respondents with a higher level of education (bachelor, master or doctoral degree), while other respondents displayed a more moderate interest in these fields

Overall, the sample reflected a **balanced gender repartition** in **all levels of education and types of work**. That is, the ratio between men and women in all education and work categories were similar and proportional with the overall ratio men-women, for both exhibition and activities. The following graphs visualise this finding, based on cross-tabulations between gender, type of employment and education levels variables.



Graphs 6, 7: Gender repartition on levels of education









The Education sector is the most represented in the sample (as the more specific sector of work and activity in general), for both the visitors of the exhibition and the participants in activities, followed by the **Research sector**. Overall, there is a very similar repartition per work sector for both the exhibition and activities, in relation to the overall participants numbers, as shown in the graph below.



Graph 10: Clustered repartition per work sector for exhibition and activities

The overall balanced sample regarding socio-demographic characteristics for both the activities and exhibition indicates that the results of the research are not biased towards a certain view associated with certain social and economic characteristics, but, on the contrary, provide a balanced image of the overall view on science engagement, as perceived by several representatives of different age cohorts, levels of education, sectors of activities across Europe.

Finally, the survey's answers for both the exhibition and activities were grouped by geographical areas, in order to explore potential patterns in the way individuals relate to the

topic of science and health and overall science engagement in four main regions: Northern, Western, Central/Eastern and Southern Europe. However, the geographical repartition analysis has shown that there is no substantial difference in the responses provided in the identified regions.

4. ASSESSMENT OF PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

This section presents the research's findings in relation with the level of public engagement in the Sparks exhibition and activities. Four indicators inform on the public engagement:

- the visitors' and participants' displayed interest in the proposed topics,
- their understanding of the topics,
- the level of participation in the discussions
- their willingness to participate in future similar activities.

As described in table 1, the evaluation and assessment of the project will be based on the analysis of three different conceptual areas. These conceptual areas will then be at the base of the second layer of analysis, that will be aimed at identifying potential successful or unsuccessful factors of this project by operating different correlations between the indicators of these areas and the socio-demographic composition of the sample. The first conceptual area is related to the public engagement indicators. These indicators will be of significant importance to understand the actual extent of engagement and participation in the different project's activities.

4.1 Interest in the topic

In what concerns the exhibition, the analysis of the aggregated data showed a rather **high interest of the visitors in the proposed topic**. The responses to the survey questions listed in the table 1 reflect that the exhibited stories and artworks presented a high relevance for the viewers, being able to stir their thoughts and generate dialogue.

Similar results were observed in relation to the aggregated responses collected for the different types of Sparks activities. The respondents considered, in general, the topics as relevant and presented in a thought provoking way.

In addition to this, both visitors of the exhibition and participants in activities considered the topic of such events (i.e. its relevance for them) as an important factor to trigger their participation in future similar events.

The analysis further revealed interesting correlations between the respondents' level of education and the relevance of the topic and the artworks. Respondents with a **higher education background** (bachelor, master or doctoral degree) have generally considered the **exhibition' and activities' topics as significantly relevant** for them. The same was noticed in relation to the artworks presented in the exhibition, which have in general, triggered a stronger interest among the higher educated respondents. In addition to this, higher educated respondents were also those who, in general, considered the choice of the topic as an important trigger for them to participate to similar activities or exhibitions in the future.

Arts and Science in Sparks

Three selected artists following a call for residency at the Ars Electronica Futurelab all worked on the verge of art and science to develop projects reflecting visions of future healthcare and wellbeing. The outcomes were very diverse in their artistic approach and show well the potential of art as an enabler of RRI.

As different as the projects are, they all serve a common goal: to give the audience a feeling of what might be, to anticipate the consequences of technological shifts, art can serve as a shift in perspective. This approach aims to unlock new strategies to tackle unsolved challenges and to stimulate advanced approaches to innovation. The exhibits try to engage the public with a deeper and more human perception of the technological evolutions that are defining postmodern society. In a way, the art pieces serve themselves as mediator between public and science - as they interpret and question scientific approaches. The key is not present the artworks as 'something else', but as equal to the science stories. So, to better understand the scientific aspects of the artworks Sparks partners need to make the links and connections between art and science visible to the visitors, which has been a challenging aspect for a number of them.

4.2 Understanding of the topic

The aggregated data from the exhibition survey also informs about the level of understanding of the topic by the visitors. It could be observed that the perception of the respondents is significantly positive, showing a **general high confidence in participating to discussions around health** and that the amount of information provided was deemed sufficient in order to understand the topic. Finally, the analysis of the responses also showed the importance for participants to discover and **familiarise themselves with new scientific tools and practices**, in order to attend more similar events in the future.

The analysis of the aggregated data for the activities shows that, in general, the participants also displayed a **significant understanding of the proposed topics**. The respondents had enough information to understand the concepts and they felt inspired to continue the discussions after the event. The **importance of discovering new scientific tools** in order to attend to similar activities in the future was also highlighted in the responses.

4.3 Participation in the discussion

The third indicator aims to highlight the actual extent of participation in the discussion among the people involved in the activities and exhibition. This indicator was equally informed by the organisers' opinion, thus providing a double point of view on the matter. The analysis shows that the format of the exhibition had chiefly encouraged the visitors to **share their thoughts around the presented topic.** The opportunity for participants to share their thoughts and to speak with experts is generally considered as a highly important factor to trigger to the participation in future similar events.⁶

The analysis of the aggregated data for the activities also shows **positive results** amongst respondents in what concerns the opportunities to participate in the discussions. The participants considered that they had the opportunity to share their thoughts and to hear about different point of views. Moreover, they felt that the moderator facilitated the dialogue, that there was sufficient time to engage in the discussion and that their contribution was treated equally to others'. Finally, respondents would also like to attend similar activities in the future if they have the opportunity to share their thoughts and to speak with experts. These points of view are shared by the organisers, who equally felt that, overall, **the participants actively engaged in the discussions**. According to the organisers, the discussions initially required encouragement from the chair/moderator, but they eventually easily moved forward and the participants continued the discussion also after the event.

These results generally show the importance of interactive formats and of the quality of the moderation to trigger higher participation from the audience (see further details in section 6.2).

4.4 Willingness to participate in future similar events

The assessment of the willingness to participate in future similar events informs about the **potential replicability of the Sparks activities**. The indicator concerns the perspectives of both participants and organisers.

The analysis reveals that a strong majority of respondents are willing to take part in similar events in the future (approximately 80% of the respondents). The graph 11 below shows the number and degree of willingness to participate in future events expressed by the exhibition's visitors.

⁶ Local organisers were encouraged to hold the science espressos in the Sparks exhibition event space therefore more links could be made between the activity and the exhibition and to complete the visitors' experience of the exhibition with interaction with an expert, a patient, a citizen scientist etc. invited to speak and interact with the audience.

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825



Graph 11: Willingness to participate in future similar exhibitions

Equally, the activities' survey shows that a strong majority of respondents are willing to take part in similar activities in the future (around 90% of the participants). This is shown in the graph 12 below.



Graph 12: Aggregated data for the willingness to participate in future similar activities



Graph 13: Willingness to participate in future similar activities per type of activity

The local organisers also share the above points of view. Graph 14 shows how the local organisers perceived the audience's willingness to participate in future similar events in relation to each type of activity.





* the answers are computed via a weighted average which shows the willingness' score on a scale from 1 to 6 (1 corresponding to 'strongly agree', 6 corresponding to 'strongly disagree' values on the Likert scale of the question). As seen in the graph, all activities scored between 1 and 2.1, showing a general strong willingness to participate in future similar activities.

5. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The success of the Sparks project highly depends on the promotion and organisation of the activities at local level. The local organisers were responsible for the identification and establishment of local partnerships with stakeholders from the education, administration, government and business fields. As a result, the level of stakeholders' engagement is informed from the organisers' perspective on their willingness to organise and take part in future similar events and on the level of the multi-actor (stakeholders) dialogue. Another important indicator relates to the respondents' perspective on the types of societal actors suited to play a role in research and innovation.

This section presents the findings in this area as well as a brief overview of the number and type of stakeholders involved per venue.

5.1 Respondents' perspective on suitable societal actors to play a role in RRI

In order to measure the level of engagement amongst the stakeholders it is also important to note which actors are the most suitable to play a role in Research & Innovation in the field of health, according to the Sparks events' participants.

In fact, the analysis of responses from activities' participants shows that the majority of responses pointed to scientists as the category of actors the most suited to get involved in the **Research & Innovation health field**. However, as shown in the graph below, respondents have, in general, different perspectives about this issue.



Graph 15: Type of actors that are viewed as suitable to engage in RRI in the field of health - activities

For what concerns the responses provided to the same question by the exhibition participants, it could be argued that, in this case, the majority of respondents retain that individual citizens –

and to a lesser extent the scientists – shall be engaged in Research & Innovation in the field of health, as also witnessed by the graph below.



Graph 16: Type of actors that are viewed as suitable to engage in RRI in the field of health - exhibition

This trend can be correlated to the very topic and curatorial approach of the exhibition that showcased personal stories of individual citizens empowered by technology to tackle health issues and take part in scientific research. Feedback gathered on local organisers' general impression on the exhibition highlighted the **strong**, **personal-driven interest of visitors**. The realistic character of the stories presented was reported to inspire visitors and to make them identify with the citizens in the stories. Many local organisers underlined that the novelty of the approach encouraged visitors to cast a new look on citizens' contribution to research and innovation.

Some testimonies of Beyond the Lab hosts are presented below:

'What worked best was to focus on the individuals and to show, that scientists are citizens and citizens are scientists' (Ars Electronica, Austria)

'Visitors [...] were very energized by the novelty of all the stories. Beyond the lab comes with an extremely positive outlook on the future and is a very empowering exhibition' (Norrköping Visualization Center C, Sweden)

'Most visitors were very surprised to discover that people without background in medicine and/or engineering started to make incredible inventions that helped them and others to better life with their diseases. Many visitors underlined that this was the key message of the exhibition and also that motivated them to also get involved.' (Luxembourg Science Centre, Luxembourg)

5.2 Willingness to organise future similar events

The willingness of the local partners to organise future similar events was significantly important to assess, as well as the impact of collaborations and partnerships at local level in order to consider the project's sustainability.

The analysis shows that the organisers are **generally keen to organise similar events** in the future, as expressed by the large majority. The graph below shows the expressed willingness of local organisers to use again in the future the entire Sparks procedure (proposed theme, methodological guidelines, training, etc.) for each type of activity.



Graph 17: Willingness to organise future similar activities*

* the answers are computed via a weighted average which shows the willingness' score on a scale from 1 to 6 (1 corresponding to 'strongly agree', 6 corresponding to 'strongly disagree' values on the Likert scale of the question). As seen in the graph, all activities scored between 1 and 2.3, showing a general strong willingness to use again the Sparks formats in the future.

5.3 Multi-actor dialogue

The analysis reveals a wide range of factors which have positively or negatively impacted the multi-actor dialogue. These are:

- the chosen topic
- the content inputs from the exhibition
- the way the topic was presented
- the physical location
- the presence of different actors and points of view
- the way the moderator animated the session
- the availability of sufficient time to engage in the discussion
- the way in which the different contributions were treated.

As shown in the graph 18, one of the most successful factor relates to the chosen topic, which fostered the debate and the multi-actor dialogue. Another recurrent successful factor relates to

the quality and diversity of the experts: according to the organisers these characteristics have facilitated the dialogue within the different activities. Finally, the activities' formats have also played an important role in encouraging the multi-actor dialogue. In particular, the format has been mainly described as informal and interactive.



Graph 18: Successful factors influencing the multi-actor dialogue – aggregate results for all type of activities

Graph 19 shows that the most recurrent factors which have hampered the multi-actor dialogue according to the different organisers are also the choice of the topic and the quality of the experts. The fact that these two factors account for both the success and unsuccess of debates reveals topics and experts' pivotal role in the development of discussions. Furthermore, it is also worthy to mention the recurrence of two other factors that prevented the multi-actor dialogue: communication and timing. The first one refers to the perceived lack of communication aimed at securing and attracting attendances, the lack of information regarding the context and content of the different activities and finally the absence of press and media actors. On the other hand, the timing factor refers to the fact that, according to the organisers, there was not enough time for the discussions, or on the contrary, that the event lasted for too long, thus preventing an active engagement in the discussion by the activities' participants.



Graph 19: Unsuccessful factors influencing the multi-actor dialogue – aggregate results for all type of activities

The list of factors and their related definition could be accessed in the Annex II.

5.4 Number and types of involved stakeholders per venue

The number and types of involved stakeholders per venue reveals, to a certain extent, the dimension of partnerships and collaborations at local level. The Toolkit will give more information on the roles of involved stakeholders in the different Sparks activities.

The aggregated data show rather high differences between the number of partners from country to country, ranging from 24 (Slovakia) to 2 (UK and Belgium). In total there were 194 stakeholders involved in the 27 different venues for which data was available. However, the data collected via the template does not show the importance or scale of the partnerships. As such, some local organisers could have established few large partnerships with big stakeholders, while others could have set up several collaborations with smaller local partners.



Graph 20: Number of involved stakeholders per venue

Furthermore, the data shows that the majority of involved stakeholders come from the education and research fields. Other recurrent types of stakeholders are represented by civil society organisations and to a lesser degree, actors from the industry and business sectors. Finally, the number of stakeholders relating to the government and media/marketing fields could be considered as the least involved for all the types of activity.

6. SUCCESSFUL PRACTICES

This section presents the overall tools and practices which proved to be relevant for the success of the Sparks events (i.e. contribute to fostering public engagement, multi-actor dialogue and proved to be important elements in the organisation of future events), according to both participants and organisers. The investigated tools and practices relate to the venue's adequacy and the specificities of the events' format.

6.1 Venues' adequacy

The chosen venues represent an important source of investigation, in order to understand whether science centres, museums or other types of venues shall be considered as suitable locations for these events. It is noteworthy to mention that 10 out of 17 local organisers held Sparks events a science museum or a science centre. The remaining 7 organisers used various type of locations, ranging from university, library and public school to resort, creative hub, technological park or other type of museums (e.g. historical museum). This variation in the type of exhibition and/or activities venues is due either to internal (the partner is not a science centre or museum and has to have Sparks events in its premises or at a local partner's) or external factors impacting the set-up of the exhibition (space, renovation works, etc.).

The exhibition's visitors' survey show that the large majority of respondents consider science centres and museums suitable, as these venues were perceived appropriate places for debates and discussions around the proposed topic. Graph 21 summarises the visitors view on the matter.



Graph 21: Science museums and centres as appropriate place to share thoughts and debate? - exhibition

The results are similar in what concerns Sparks activities participants' views. The survey's results show that a large majority of the respondents find science museums and centres as appropriate places to share thoughts and debate. Moreover, respondents also considered the physical location as adequate to hear participants' contributions. Graphs 22 and 23 summarises these responses.

Graph 22: Science museums and centres as appropriate place to share thoughts and debate? - activities





Graph 23: Physical location as adequate place to hear contributions? - activities

More qualitative insights on the venues' adequacy were provided by the local organisers. Their inputs were very diverse and they weren't mandatory, since the venues' evaluation mainly refers to subjective perspectives, which are influenced by the diversity of the venues correlated with the several types of activities. Thus, it is very difficult to retain overall absolute advantages and disadvantages, given different contexts, social environments etc. As such, in order to summarize the outcomes of the qualitative insights it is necessary to define what 'venue adequacy' actually means for this report.

In fact, it is possible to argue that there are 3 general factors that influence the adequacy overall and characterize the venue as a suitable location for this type of events:

- 1. Space (size, acoustics, setting...)
- 2. Location (near the exhibition, periphery...)
- 3. Environment (noisy, quiet, comfortable...)

Thus, as emerged by the analysis of the qualitative data included in the templates for local organisers, it is important that the venue has enough space for the number of expected participants and that the space was correctly allocated amongst participants in order to involve them in the discussions. For instance, the French local organisers claimed that for the Science Espresso there was not enough space for all the participants.

For what concerns the choice of the location for the different activities, it has been pointed out that for the organisation of the Science Espressos, the location shall be outside of the exhibition

space, as for instance the entrance area of the museum. The organisers in Croatia and Sweden, point out that an unconventional space (e.g. a cafeteria in Sweden and a health resort in Croatia) might work better, since it encourages an open and informal atmosphere (Sweden) and because the topic might fit well with the location (Croatia). The Greek organisers also pointed out that when organising this type of events, it could be important to choose a location in the city centre or in places that could attract and facilitate the participation of everyone, thus avoiding peripheral locations. Finally, the venue should be characterized by a quiet and comfortable environment. Especially for what concerns the organisation of the Scenario Workshop, it has been pointed out that it could be more suitable to have this type of event organized in comfortable spaces, which seems to be more appropriate than setting up conference tables, since this would allow participants to open-up and getting out of their usually formal roles⁷. Another important feature at the base of the venues' adequacy regards the possibility of having locations that are not too noisy or busy, since this could prevent the occurrence of debates and discussions, as it has been the case for Copernicus Science Centre in Poland and Science Museum London in the United Kingdom which are both very popular and therefore bustling science centres.

6.2 Formats' interactivity

In order to establish the level of interactivity of different Sparks formats, the analysis focuses on the input provided by local partners, as they integrally organised and implemented the formats.

The data collected among the local organisers showed that the different formats are generally considered interactive facilitating multi-actor dialogue. Moreover, the analysis of qualitative outputs has also revealed that one of the most recurrent success factors – especially for the Science Espresso and Reverse Science Café formats - was the interactivity of the format.



Graph 24: Activities facilitating multi-actor dialogue per type of activity*

* the answers are computed via a weighted average which shows the value each activity scored on a scale from 1 to 6 (1 corresponding to 'strongly agree', 6 corresponding to 'strongly disagree' values on

⁷ The setting has to be related to the length of the event: a Scenario Workshop lasting for 5 hours will need a more comfortable space than a 30 min Science Espresso (see table 5 on activities formats below).

the Likert scale of the question). This value indicated the multi-actor dialogue, which is a composed indicator, taking into consideration respondents' views on 9 issues: the chosen topic, content inputs from the exhibition, the way the topic was presented, the physical location, the presence of different actors and points of view, the way the moderator animated the session, the time to engage in discussions, the way contributions were treated and the overall format of the activity. As seen in the graph, all activities scored between 1,4 and 1,8, showing the multi-actor dialogue was successfully facilitated.

Moreover, an important outcome related to the interactivity of the format could be detected by operating a correlation between the characteristics of the activities' formats and the related responses provided by the participants.

The research revealed that the interactivity of the formats is predominantly influenced by:

- 1. the type and number of experts invited,
- 2. the presence of a specific number of moderators,
- 3. the expected length of each activity.

The experts have proven to play an essential role in triggering the interest of the activity's participants, as well as the moderators in fostering the debate and the interactions from the audience. Finally, the timing of the event is also quite important to understand if the formats provide enough time for discussions. The table below shows the guidelines provided to the local organisers for the organisation of the Sparks activities according to their specific formats.

Table 5: Sparks activities' formats

Type of Activity	Number of experts	Moderators	Approximate duration of the activity
Reverse Science Café	1	l main moderator + l moderator per group (according to the number of participants)	3 hours
Science Espresso	1	1	Between 30 and 60 minutes
Pop-up Science Shop	l supervisor, l resea pool of researchers	rcher/student and a	Varies (from 2 weeks to 2 months)
Scenario Workshop	Not specified	1	5 hours
Incubation Workshop / Hackathon	Participants intended as experts	Mentors (according to the number of participants)	6 days

The analysis of the indicators relating to the public engagement conceptual reveals, as expected, that there is a strong correlation between the characteristics of the formats of each activity and their interactivity. As mentioned in sections the sections 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3, the participants in activities generally felt encouraged to share their thoughts, to take actively part

in the discussion, to talk with people they did not know before and to continue discussing also after the event.

Moreover, the aforementioned analysis of the public engagement indicators has also revealed that, according to activities' participants, the topic was, on average, presented in a thought provoking way and that enough information was provided to understand it. Finally, the interactivity of the format – which is given by the organisational tools listed in table 5 – could also be tested in relation to the perceived willingness of the activities' participants to attend similar events in the future if they can speak with experts and share their thoughts, but also if the format would be similar to the one of the events they have attended.

7. CONCLUSION

The aim of this report is to conceptualise the knowledge and identify the impact that the Sparks project had on communicating RRI practices at the intersection of health, science and technology. The report highlighted three main conceptual areas that inform on Sparks' main outcomes: **public engagement**, **stakeholder engagement** and the **successful practices** highlighting the potential replicability of the different formats and methodologies.

Within the public engagement area, the analysis of the collected data provided meaningful insights on the interest in the topic and its understanding by the public, the audience's involvement in the discussion and the audience's willingness to participate in future similar events. The overall results show that the public has been widely and strongly engaged in the different activities and in the touring exhibition of this project and that the audience showed interest in participating in similar types of activities in the future.

The stakeholder engagement area allowed the research team to understand to what extent the local organisers have benefited from local partnerships for the eventual success of the project in the different venues. The data analysis highlighted the local organisers' willingness to organise similar events in the future. Furthermore, the multi-actor dialogue indicator informed about the features of the project which helped in triggering and fostering debates and discussions, thus providing insights about the stakeholders' involvement in the project's activities.

One of the research's highlights was the identification of the most suitable societal actors to play a role in RRI from the perspective citizens engaged with Sparks' activities. Despite the fact that scientists represented the first option for the majority of respondents, other categories of actors like individual citizens and the educational community emerged as important in the shaping of RRI practices. These results suggest that amongst the core values of RRI, engagement of a diversity of stakeholders is considered important by the European society to better shape the future of research and innovation, align both the process and outcomes with its values, needs and expectations.

The last conceptual area highlights successful practices at the base of this project, which inform on the potential replicability of the project's format, setting and methodology. The majority of participants and visitors retain science centres and museums as appropriate venues for the Sparks activities and in general, conducive to dialogue. In addition to this, the insights provided by the local organisers showed that there are in general three main factors which might affect the venue's adequacy: the physical setting of the space (size, acoustic, etc.), the geographical location (peripherical or close to universities, places of interest, etc.) and the type of environment (noisy, informal or comfortable, etc.). The activities' formats proved to be highly interactive. This characteristic is considered by the local organisers as an important factor able to affect the participation, the multi-actor dialogue and, more generally, the success of the specific activity. In fact, each type of activity has been characterized by a different methodology and format that is aimed at fostering interactions amongst participants. The Sparks project has thus demonstrated that citizen engagement in RRI can be achieved through pan-European campaigns including exhibitions and hands-on activities.

Nonetheless, RRI needs places to happen and facilitate multi-stakeholder dialogue. Thanks to their connections in the field of science and research at local level and experience of science communication, science centres and museums can make a strong contribution to this infrastructure and ecosystem. They can be supported and complemented by other places and meaningful connections such as fab-labs, citizen scientists or makers. Sparks has provided spaces for citizen-led innovation, advancing research for instance during hackathons. The project has also created a platform to make these innovations better known by the public, by telling the stories of citizens and artists empowered by new technologies such as 3D printing or bio hacking who are contributing to research in health and medicine.

There are strong communities in DIY science and health hacking, taking advantage of new technologies to communicate and share experiences⁸ that need to be acknowledged and with whom interaction should be improved through nurturing places for debates and mutual learning online and through on-site activities. With these tested formats of public engagement activities, Sparks has opened up spaces and formats for dialogue, bridging the gap between research, education communities, civil society and policy.

Interdisciplinary connections are a pivotal to come up with innovative solutions closer to societal needs. Sparks activities demonstrate the potential of bringing in different perspectives from the society, research and industry fields. They need to be acknowledged and valued at policy level and policy tools need to be adapted to improve dialogue between science and society. Policy recommendations to bridge the gap between science and society at EU level are provided in a comprehensive document available on the project's website⁹.

⁸ See the stories presented in he exhibition 'Beyond the Lab': 'We are not waiting' diabetes community, Parkinson's patients sharing information online, Patient Innovation network, or the 'I like clean air' campaign as well as the local RRI case studies.

⁹ <u>http://www.sparksproject.eu/news/what-sparks-recommends-policy-makers</u>

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

ANNEX I: Definitions of terms

The main terms used in the analysis of the formats' interactivity and the multi-actor dialogue, are listed below, together with their definitions within this analytical context for a better understanding.

Terms	Definition
Absence of the exhibition	In a Sparks local organisation, the location of the activities was different from the one of the exhibition or the exhibition arrived later than the activities had started, thus preventing from getting content inputs from the exhibition for the activities.
Audience	In some venues, the audience was adequately prepared and interested in the topic and its diversity contributed to the interactivity of the activities. On the other hand, in other venues, the audience was perceived as a factor that did not facilitate the debate, because people were, for instance, not enough informed about the topic or because they were stirring the discussion, thus preventing others' contributions to be heard.
Communication	All potential issues encountered by the organisers in dealing with the communication management, ranging from the stakeholders' engagement, to the event promotion and experts' and media invitations.
Content input from the exhibition	The adherence of the exhibition' content with the activities, meaning that the content of activities and exhibition were directly or indirectly connected or on the contrary, whether the content of the exhibition did not fit with the activities' topic.
Diversity of participants	The diversity or homogeneity of the participants' background, age group, sector of activity etc. It is arguable that this perceived diversity amongst participants could have played a significant role in fostering interactivity and, in general, the debates and discussions.
Experts	Experts refers to both the quality of the invited experts (in relation to their knowledge of the topic, their level of preparation, the quality of their presentation, their ability to interact with the audience) and the diversity of invited experts from different backgrounds that allowed multiple points of view to be expressed in the discussions.
Format	How the guidelines and methodology provided within the Sparks Handbook have been understood and adopted by the local organisers. This informs about how the format could have had an impact on the interactivity and organisation of the different activities.
Graphic facilitation	A graphic support tool used to stir the discussion through drawings. An illustrator is there to facilitate a problem- solving exercise.

Informal/open	The quality of the exchanges between participants and
atmosphere	between the audience and experts facilitated by the format
	of activities, as well as by the setting. The informal/open
	atmosphere was assessed as a factor which facilitated or
	made more difficult the flowing participation in the
	discussion during activities.
Lack of incentives	This mainly applies to Hackathons, a type of event that
	requires the provision of prizes or awards at the end of the
	activity, incentivising people to participate and dedicate
	time to the activity.
Location	The place where the activities have been held and the
	perceived adequacy of the venue, thus providing
	meaningful insights about the location that better fits these
	types of events.
Moderator	It refers to the perceived support of the moderators to the
	development of debates and discussions within the
	activities, thus mainly informing about the potential
	interactivity of the different activities.
Partnership	The network of third parties involved in the activities at
	local level (invited experts, content providers, host
	organisations etc.). The quality of the partnership with local
	stakeholders has been perceived as a pivotal factor in the
	successful implementation of activities.
Schedule	When in the month, week or day the event was hold. It also
	refers to the fact that the activity was or not scheduled as
	part of a larger event or in parallel to other activities. The
	schedule has been identified as a factor securing or
	hampering attendance to the Sparks events.
Setting	How the organisers perceived the spatial organisation of
	the venue hosting the activity and how it facilitated – or not
	- the participation and interaction with the audience.
Staff	The perceived support or issues in the team fulfilling the
	organisational tasks for the implementation of the activity.
Store atoms	Explication of the implementation of the extinity by detailed
Structure	racilitation of the implementation of the activity by detailed
	respected
Timing	Timing refers to the fact that according to the organizors
Tilling	there was or was not enough time for both presentations
	and discussion or that the activity lasted for too long
Торіс	The main themes debated during the Sparks activities
	(connected to healthcare and technology).

ANNEX II: database of local stakeholder organisations interested in participating in RRI processes

AUSTRIA

CONTACT POINT Maria Pfeifer Maria.Pfeifer@aec.at Ars Electronica www.aec.at

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Arbeitsgruppe Citizen Science, Institut für Zoologie Universität für Bodenkultur Wien www.citizen-science.at Kepler Salon - Verein zur Förderung von Wissensvermittlung www.kepler-salon.at **Creative Region Linz & Upper Austria GmbH** www.creativeregion.org FH OÖ Studienbetriebs GmbH www.fh-ooe.at/campus-wels Competence Network Information Technology to Support the Integration of People with Disabilities www.ki-i.at Med Campus VI. Studiengang Radiologietechnologie www.fh-gesundheitsberufe.at Kepler Universitätsklinikum Zentrales Radiologie Institut – ZRI Med Campus III. www.kepleruniklinikum.at/versorgung/inst itute/zentrales-radiologie-institut-zri/team Kunstuniversität Linz - Kunst.Forschung, QM & PE | Abteilungsleitung www.ufg.ac.at/Kunst-Forschung-QM-PE.8957.0.html Kunstuniversität Linz Wissenstransferzentrum West www.wtz-west.at

BELGIUM CONTACT POINT Dorien Smits dorien.smits@technopolis.be Flanders Technology International / Technopolis www.technopolis.be

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS:

Ghent University, Clinical Research Centre of Ghent University Hospital <u>www.crig.ugent.be/en/bimetra</u>

BULGARIA

CONTACT POINT: **Dr. Boryana Damyanova**

boryana.damyanova@gmail.com Centre for Research and Analysis www.cra-bg.org ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Technical University Sofia https://tu-sofia.bg/

CROATIA CONTACT POINT Marinela Cukrov Marinela.Cukrov@blue-world.org Blue World Institute of Marine Rese

Blue World Institute of Marine Research and Conservation <u>www.blue-world.org</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: NGO Centre for Health **Teaching Institute of Public Health** www.kvarnerhealth.com/members/teachin g-institute-of-public-health-rijeka Health Resort Veli Lošinj www.kvarnerhealth.com/members/healthresort-veli-losinj Citv of Mali Lošinj-Government administration /www.mali-losinj.hr/ High school Ambroza Haračića

CYPRUS

CONTACT POINT **Andreas Efstathiades, PhD** <u>a.efstathiades@euc.ac.cy</u> European University Cyprus <u>www.euc.ac.cy</u> ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: AAI Scientific Cultural Services Ltd. -Laboratory for Human Brain Dynamics

www.aaiscs.com Saint John Lampadistis Rehabilitation and Physiotherapy centre <u>lambadistis.com/en-us/</u>

DENMARK CONTACT POINT: Tina Ibsen tii@tycho.dk Tycho Brahe Planetarium www.planetariet.dk

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS:

DTU SPACE http://www.space.dtu.dk/ DAC (Danish Aerospace Company) www.danishaerospace.com House of Natural Sciences www.nvhus.dk/om-os/english/ Ministry of Higher Education and Science ufm.dk/en/the-ministry/organisation/theministry Terma Space www.terma.com/ Lonnie Grove Petersen (KU) www.bmi.ku.dk

ESTONIA CONTACT POINT: Annika Vesselov Annika.Vesselov@ahhaa.ee Science Centre AHHAA www.ahhaa.ee ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Perfect Cosmetics OÜ (LUMI) luminordic.com/ The Faculty of Medicine of the University of Tartu www.ut.ee/en/kontakt/meditsiiniteadustevaldkond FysioPai OÜ fysiopai.ee/ The Estonian Medical Students' Association eays.ee/en/msa/

FINLAND CONTACT POINT: Kati Tyystjärvi kati.tyystjarvi@heureka.fi Heureka

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

www.heureka.fi ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Metropolia University of Applied Sciences www.metropolia.fi/en/ Health Tech Finland www.finlandhealth.fi/healthtech University of Helsinki www.helsinki.fi/en Council for the Elderly, City of Vantaa www.vantaa.fi/administration and econom y/desicion-making/city_council Municipal administration, Civil society, City of Vantaa www.vantaa.fi/ Kuuloliitto ry www.kuuloliitto.fi/ Committee for disabled, Left Alliance www.vasemmisto.fi/vasemmistoliitto/englis h/left-alliance/ The Finnish Medical Society Duodecim www.duodecim.fi/english/ Finnish Diabetes association www.diabetes.fi/en/finnish diabetes assoc iation Human-Driven Health. The Finnish **Innovation Fund Sitra** https://www.sitra.fi/en/topics/humandriven-health/

FRANCE CONTACT POINT: Cécile Marsan c.marsan@cap-sciences.net

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Bordeaux University <u>www.facts-bordeaux.fr</u> Philosophia Festival <u>www.festival-philosophia.com</u> Institut Bergonié / SIRIC BRIO <u>siric-brio.com</u> Idex: Research Initiative of Excellence idex.u-bordeaux.fr

GERMANY CONTACT POINT Norbert Steinhaus norbert.steinhaus@wilabonn.de Bonn Science Shop www.wilabonn.de

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: LVR-LandesMuseum Bonn www.landesmuseum-bonn.lvr.de **Competence Cluster Diet-Body-Brain** www.diet-body-brain.de nahdran - Kommunikation für Gesundheit und Wissenschaft www.nahdran-kommunikation.de BonnLAB - City Lab www.bonnlab.de Open Knowledge Lab Bonn www.codeforbonn.de University of Bonn Chair for agriculture and production ecology - Apiculture of the University www.lf.uni-bonn.de

GREECE

CONTACT POINT: Aliki Giannakopoulou Giannakopoulou@ea.gr Ellinogermaniki Agogi www.ea.gr ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: CityCrop Automated Indoor Farming www.citycrop.io Saintiago www.nutrinsider.gr/ Aristotle Panepistimio University - School of **Electrical and Computer Engineering** www.auth.gr/en/ee Mednutrition mednutritionhub.com/eng/ Harokopio University of Athens www.hua.gr/index.php/en/

HUNGARY CONTACT POINT Bálint Balázs balazs.balint@essrg.hu Györgyi Bela, PhD bela.gyorgyi@essrg.hu Environmental Social Science Research Group essrg.hu

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: IMPACT HUB Budapest <u>budapest.impacthub.net/</u> E-NABLE Hungary <u>www.enable.hu/</u>

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

Route4U route4u.org/ MAKERSPACE Hungary www.makerspace.hu Smart Healthcare Meetup network www.meetup.com/Smart-Healthcare-Meetup/ TEDx Danubia www.tedxdanubia.com Desingterminal designterminal.org/ Magyar Környezeti Nevelők Egyesülete mkne.hu/ Ökopszichológiai Intézet ecopsychology.hu/

IRELAND

CONTACT POINT Science Gallery Dublin dublin.sciencegallery.com/ / info@dublin.sciencegallery.com ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Intellectual Disability Supplement to The Irish Longitudinal Study on Ageing idstilda.tcd.ie/ Trinity College Dublin www.tcd.ie/ Medical Research Charities Group www.mrcq.ie/ H2020 ProACT - the Trinity Centre for Practice and Healthcare Innovation www.tcd.ie/tcphi/h2020-proact/ Centre for Bioengineering - Trinity College Dublin www.tcd.ie/bioengineering/ University College Dublin www.ucd.ie/

ITALY CONTACT POINT MUSE Science Museum www.muse.it/ / museinfo@muse.it

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Brenta Open APSS – Azienda Sanitaria www.apss.tn.it/ University of Trento www.unitn.it/fr Open Dot www.opendotcom.it/ Italian Federation of Ice Sports

www.fisg.it/web/

LATVIA CONTACT POINT ZINOO Cēsis www.zinoo.lv/centri/cesis/

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Institute of Environmental Solutions www.videsinstituts.lv/en **Riga Technical University** www.rtu.lv/en Latvian Centre for Disease Prevention and Control eurohealthnet.eu/member/centre-diseaseprevention-and-control-latvia School 6 skola6.lv/ **C**ēsis Municipality www.cesis.lv/en **Riga Stradinš University** www.rsu.lv/ Institute of Solid State Physics www.cfi.lu.lv/eng/

LITHUANIA CONTACT POINT Sandra Kanopkaite sandra.kanopkaite@gmail.com Institute for Social Innovation Vilnius www.sii.lt

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Baltic Institute of Advanced Technology (BPTI) bpti.eu/ Vilnius iGEM 2017.igem.org/Team:Vilnius-Lithuania Society of Innovative Medicine imdraugija.lt/en/home/ Life Science Centre of Vilnius University www.gmc.vu.lt/en/ Aresi Labs www.aresilabs.com/ Salva Media

LUXEMBOURG CONTACT POINT Luxembourg Science Centre www.science-center.lu/ ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Service national de la Jeunesse www.snj.public.lu/fr University of Luxembourg - Luxembourg **Center for Systems Biomedicine** wwwfr.uni.lu/lcsb Luxembourg Institute of Health www.lih.lu/ National Research Fund www.fnr.lu/ Ministry of health Luxembourg - Radiation Protection Division logistics.public.lu/en/formalitiesprocedures/agencies/radiation-protectiondivision.html Doctena en.doctena.lu/

MALTA CONTACT POINT Des Cini des-luke.cini@gov.mt ESPLORA esplora.org.mt/

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: University of Malta - The Malta Genome project <u>www.um.edu.mt/projects/mhgp/</u> Cancer-Care Pathways <u>deputyprimeminister.gov.mt/en/ccp/Pages</u> /home.aspx

THE NETHERLANDS CONTACT POINT **Continium Discovery Center** www.continium.nl / info@continium.nl ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Brightland Chemelot Campus New Materials www.brightlands.com/areasexpertise/brightlands-chemelot-campus University Maastricht www.maastrichtuniversity.nl/ **Brightland Smart Services Campus** www.brightlands.com/brightlands-smartservices-campus Brightland Health Campus www.brightlands.com/brightlandsmaastricht-health-campus EIZT www.innovatiesindezorg.eu/ DDO

www.ddg.nl/ Alzheimer Centrum Limburg www.alzheimercentrumlimburg.nl/ SCA/Essity www.essity.com/ Studio Knol studioknol.com Waarmakers www.waarmakers.nl Studio Soma www.studio-soma.nl Tove www.toov.nl Afdeling Buitengewone Zaken afdelingbuitengewonezaken.nl **Design For Humanity** designforhumanity.nl/why/

POLAND

CONTACT POINT Blazej Dawidson blazej.dawidson@kopernik.org.pl Copernicus Science Centre www.kopernik.org.pl info@kopernik.org.pl

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Open Science Foundation <u>opensciencefoundation.eu/</u> Medical University of Warsaw <u>2wl.wum.edu.pl/en</u> Warsaw University of Technology <u>www.pw.edu.pl/engpw</u> BabyLab Institute (Faculty of Psychology University of Warsaw) <u>www.swps.pl/</u>

PORTUGAL CONTACT POINT Amilton Moreira amoreira@cienciaviva.pt Ciencia Viva cienciaviva.pt/home/

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Patient innovation <u>patient-innovation.com/</u> Institute of Telecommunications, University of Lisbon <u>www.it.pt/</u> Ciência Viva do Alviela

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

www.alviela.cienciaviva.pt/home/ GAT Portugal (Treatment Action Group) europa.eu/youth/volunteering/organisation /937443794 fr APDP - Portuguese Diabetes Association www.apdp.pt/ PLUX wireless bio signals S.A. www.plux.info/index.php/en/ JUNITEC – Junior Enterprises of Instituto Superior Técnico, University of Lisbon junitec.ist.utl.pt/

ROMANIA

/

CONTACT POINT **Gyöngyvér Mara** <u>maragyongyver@uni.sapientia.ro</u>

Labworm Science Shop at Sapientia Hungarian University of Transylvania <u>www.sapientia.ro</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: **ProVitam Diagnostic Centre** www.cmpro.ro/ Public Health Directorate, Miercurea Ciuc **Emergency County Hospital Miercurea Ciuc** www.spitalmciuc.ro/index.php/en/ Harghita County Council www.judetulharghita.ro/harghita-countycouncil.html National Guard of Environment Bucharest www.gnm.ro/sitenou/ **Environmental Protection Agency Harghita** County apmhr.anpm.ro/web/apm-harghita/acasa Kós Károly High School Kájoni János High School Louis Pasteur High School Octavian Goga High School Green Zone Association Tusnad **Environmental Partnership Foundation** www.epce.ro/

SLOVAKIA CONTACT POINT Neulogy neulogy.com / info@neulogy.com

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS:

Community for Help to People with Autism (SPOSA)

www.sposa.sk/en/sposa/

The Institute of Design of Faculty of Architecture of the Slovak University of Technology

www.fa.stuba.sk

The University of Ss. Cyril and Methodius -The Centre for Bioethics

www.ucm.sk

Department of Molecular Biology, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Comenius University in Bratislava fns.uniba.sk

NanoDesign

www.nanodesign.sk Fontech

I OILLECH

fontech.startitup.sk/

Comenius University in Bratislava Science Park

cusp.uniba.sk/en/

Centre of simulation and virtual medical education at Faculty of Medicine, Comenius University in Bratislava

www.fmed.uniba.sk/en/departments/depar tment-of-simulation-and-virtual-medicaleducation/

LifeClick

Virtual Medicine

www.medicinevirtual.com/

National Centre of Telemedicine Services, Slovak University of Technology in Bratislava

Health Policy Institute

www.hpi.sk/en/

Regional Public Health Authority Bratislava www.uvzsr.sk/en/

The Ministry of the Environment, Climate Change Policy Department

www.minzp.sk/en/about-

us/contact/directorate-environmentalpolicy.html

Slovak Hydrometeorological Institute, Department of Emisssion Monitoring and Air Quality

www.shmu.sk/en/?page=1793

Ministry of Health, Institute of Healthcare Policy

Multiplex DX Inc.

/www.multiplexdx.com/

Mentegram www.slovakiahub.in/mentegram/

Sparks project, Grant Agreement No. 665825

The Slovak Alliance for Innovation Economy (SAPIE)

<u>sapie.sk/</u>

Slovak Organization for Research and Development activities (SOVVA) www.sovva.eu/

Department of Human Geography and Demography, Faculty of Natural Sciences, Comenius University in Bratislava

www.humannageografia.sk/eng/history.ph

Emocity - Cluster for E-mobility and Smart City www.emocity.sk/emocity/

Euractiv euractiv.sk/

SLOVENIA CONTACT POINT Vesna.Pajic vesna.pajic@he.si Ustanova Hiša eksperimentov www.he.si/

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Jazindiabetes d.o.o http://www.jazindiabetes.si/ Tehnologyi park Ljubljana National Research Agency https://www.arrs.gov.si/en/ Zavod za ustvarjalne rešitve s pomočjo mnenj (UMNI) http://www.umni.si/

SPAIN

CONTACT POINT: Lourdes López <u>llopez@parqueciencias.com</u> Parque de las Ciencias <u>www.parqueciencias.com</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: University of Granada <u>www.ugr.es/en/</u> Vircell <u>www.vircell.com/</u> NeuronBio <u>www.neuronbio.com/</u> Biosearch Life www.biosearchlife.es/en/ Radio Televisión Andaluza <u>www.canalsur.es/portada-2808.html</u> Andalusia School of Public Health <u>www.easp.es/</u> Biobank of the Public Health System <u>www.esbb.org/granada/</u> Local office of Regional Minister of Health <u>www.iuntadeandalucia.es/salud/sites/csalu</u> <u>d/portal/index.jsp</u> Red Cross <u>www.cruzroja.es/</u> The Andalusian Public Foundation for biomedical research in Eastern Andalusia -Division for Regional Health Services in Granada

www.fibao.es/

SWEDEN

CONTACT POINT Visualization Center C Norrköping <u>visualiseringscenter.se/</u> <u>info@visualiseringscenter.se</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS:

Bionyfiken Biohacking i Sverige <u>www.bionyfiken.se/</u> Biohax International https://www.biohax.tech/ Linköpings University <u>liu.se/en</u> Vetenskap & Allmänhet <u>v-a.se/</u> Utbildningskontoret

SWITZERLAND

CONTACT POINT **Gilda Giudici** <u>gilda.giudici@usi.ch</u> L'ideatorio - Università della Svizzera italiana <u>www.ideatorio.usi.ch/</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS:

Facoltà di scienze biomediche dell' Università della Svizzera italiana www.biomed.usi.ch/ Scuola universitaria professionale della Svizzera italiana www.supsi.ch/home.html Ente Ospedaliero Cantonale www.eoc.ch/ ASI TICINO Associazione Svizzera _ Infermieri www.asiticino.ch/home/ Pro Infirmis Ticino e Moesano www.info-workcare.ch/fr/page/proinfirmis-ticino-e-moesano-17 ATTE, Associazione Ticinese Terza www.atte.ch/ Generazioni & Sinergie generazioni-sinergie.ch/ Associazione consumatrici e consumatori della Svizzera italiana acsi.ch/ Ufficio dell'aria, del clima e delle energie rinnovabili, Dipartimiento del territorio del **Cantone Ticino** www4.ti.ch/dt/da/spaas/uacer/ufficio/ Ufficio del medico cantonale, Dipartimiento della sanita e della socialita del Cantgone Ticino www4.ti.ch/dss/dsp/umc/ufficio/ Ordine del medici del Canton Ticino www.omct.ch/omct/home

UNITED KINGDOM

/

CONTACT POINT Louis Buckley Louis.Buckley@ScienceMuseum.ac.uk London Science Museum <u>https://www.sciencemuseum.org.uk/</u>

ASSOCIATED LOCAL PARTNERS: Hack the Brain 2015 / Hack the Senses 2016 www.hackthebrain.nl/ EyeWink www.eyewink.net/

ANNEX III: Exhibition and activities questionnaires

The questionnaires were elaborated in English by KEA in consultation with the Sparks main partners and then translated locally. The Annex II presents the original versions as presented in Deliverable 4.2.

VISITOR QUESTIONNAIRE FOR THE EXHIBITION -ADULTS

Introductory questions

Good morning, I am currently carrying out a survey to assess how well (*museum name*) stimulates dialogue about science and healthcare. Your opinion is crucial to us to understand how to better engage with you. Would you be willing to answer a couple of questions? (Duration: around 5 min.)

Are you 18 or older?

- Yes
- No

If yes, the tablet will automatically open the questionnaire for adults, otherwise it will open the version developed for young people (12-17). Only school groups with students between 12 and 16 years old will be approached.

Are you under 15?

- Yes
- No

Young people under 15 will be distributed a paper copy of the questionnaire together with a form for parents/tutors to fill-in in to approve their participation to the survey. Filled-in questionnaires and forms will have to be sent back to the partner organising the exhibition. N.B: this question needs to be asked by the interviewer. It will not be displayed on the tablet. Please refer to the legislation that applies in your country for interviewing minor children.

PART I – ASSESSMENT OF SPARKS ACTIVITIES

1) My impressions about the exhibition...(with show card¹⁰ with Likert-scale)

	l Strongly agree	2 Moderately agree	3 Slightly agree	4 Slightly disagree	5 Moderately disagree	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opinion
I felt encouraged to share my thoughts							
I now feel more confident to participate in discussions around health							
I feel inspired to continue the discussion around health after visiting the exhibition							

2) How much do you agree with the following statements? (with show card with Likert-scale)

	l Strongly agree	2 Moderately agree	3 Slightly agree	4 Slightly disagree	5 Moderately disagree	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opinion
The chosen topic was relevant to me							
The topic was presented in a thought provoking way							
The art works triggered my interest							
There was enough information to understand the topic							

PART II – READINESS TO ENGAGE

- 3) After having visited the exhibition, who do you think should play a role in Research & Innovation in the field of health? (multiple answers possible)
 - 1. Individual citizens
 - 2. Business & Industry
 - 3. Government

¹⁰ See example in Annex III.

- 4. Scientists
- 5. Educational community
- 6. Civil society organisations
- 7. Other Please specify:__
- **4)** Would you like to take part to similar exhibitions in the future? (with show card with answer options)
 - 1. Yes, more frequently than now
 - 2. Yes, as frequently as now
 - 3. Yes, but less frequently than now
 - 4. Do not know
 - 5. 🗌 No, never

If you have answered 'yes', go to question 5. If you have answered 'Do not know' or 'No, never', go to question 7.

5) I would like to attend similar activities in the future if.... - Please rate the following items in terms of importance (with show card with Likert-scale)

	l Extremely important	2 Very important	3 Moderately important	4 Slightly important	5 Low Importance	6 Not important at all	99 No opinion
The topic is directly relevant to me							
The format of the event is similar to the one that I have just attended							
I have the opportunity to share my thoughts							
I can speak with experts							
I can discover new scientific tools							
Other:							

6) Do you agree with the following statement: "I find science museums and centres an appropriate place to share thoughts and debate"? (with show card with answer options)

N.B. = if the event that you have just attended did not take place in a science museum or centre, please choose the answer 'Not applicable'.

- 1. 🗌 Yes, and I already knew it before this event
- 2. 🗌 Yes, and my experience today further convinced me
- 3. ON Not really
- 4. Do not know
- 5. Not applicable

PART III - SOME INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

7) In which year were you born? _____

8) Please, indicate your gender:

- 1. 🗌 Male
- 2. 🗌 Female
- 3. Prefer not to say
- 4. Other Please specify:

9) What is the highest level of education that you have completed?

- 1. Primary Education
- 2. Secondary Education
- 3. Higher education (Bachelor or Master)
- 4. Doctoral or higher level

10) Do you work in any science-related field?

- 1. 🗌 Yes
- 2. 🗌 No
- 3. Currently, I am not working

11) How much do you agree with the following statement? (with show card with Likert-scale)

	l Strongly agree	2 Moderately agree	3 Slightly agree	4 Slightly disagree	5 Moderately disagree	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opinion
I am interested in science							
I am interested in health							
I read or find out about science/health on a regular basis							

12) In which field are you currently active? (for professional, volunteering or other reason) – multiple answers possible:

	Yes	No
Civil society organisation		
Education		
Research		
Industry/business		
Government or public administration		
Other:		

THANK YOU FOR YOUR COOPERATION!

Your responses will be treated in complete confidentiality and with anonymity.

VISITOR QUESTIONNAIRE FOR THE EXHIBITION – YOUNG PEOPLE

For persons between 12 and 17 years old

Introductory questions

Good morning, I am currently carrying out a survey to assess how well (*museum name*) stimulates dialogue about science and healthcare. Your opinion is crucial to understand how to better engage with you. Would you be willing to answer a couple of questions? (Duration: around 5 min.)

Are you 18 or older?

- Yes
- No

If yes, the tablet will automatically open the questionnaire for adults, otherwise it will open the version developed for young people (12-17). Only school groups with students between 12 and 16 years old will be approached.

Are you under 15?

- Yes
- No

Young people under 15 will be distributed a paper copy of the questionnaire together with a form for parents/tutors to fill-in in to approve their participation to the survey. Filled-in questionnaires and forms will have to be sent back to the partner organising the exhibition.

N.B: this question needs to be asked by the interviewer. It will not be displayed on the tablet. Please refer to the legislation that applies in your country for interviewing minor children.

PART I – ASSESSMENT OF SPARKS ACTIVITIES

1) My impressions about the attended event...(with show card¹¹ with Likert-scale)

	l Strongl y agree	2 Moderatel y agree	3 Slightl y agree	4 Slightly disagre e	5 Moderatel y disagree	6 Strongly disagre e	99 No opinio n
I felt encourage d to share my thoughts							
I now feel more confident to participate in discussion s around health							
I feel inspired to continue the discussion around health after visiting the exhibition							

PART II – READINESS TO ENGAGE

- 2) After having visited the exhibition, who do you think should play a role in Research & Innovation in the field of health? (multiple answers possible)
 - 1. Individual citizens
 - 2. Business & Industry
 - 3. Government
 - 4. Scientists
 - 5. Educational community
 - 6. Civil society organisations
 - 7. Other Please specify:_____
- **3) Would you like to take part to similar exhibitions in the future?** (*with show card with answer options*)
 - 1. Yes, more frequently than now
 - 2. 🗌 Yes, as frequently as now
 - 3. Yes, but less frequently than now
 - 4. Do not know
 - 5. 🗌 No, never

¹¹ See example in Annex III.

If you have answered 'yes', go to question 4. If you have answered 'Do not know' or 'No, never', go to question 6

4) I would like to attend similar activities in the future if.... - Please rate the following items in terms of importance (with show card with Likert-scale)

	l Extremely important	2 Very important	3 Moderately important	4 Slightly important	5 Low Importance	6 Not important at all	99 No opinion
The topic is directly relevant to me							
The format of the event is similar to the one that I have just attended							
I have the opportunity to share my thoughts							
I can speak with experts							
I can discover new scientific tools							
Other:							

5) Do you agree with the following statement: "I find science museums and centres an appropriate place to share thoughts and debate"? (with show card with answer options)

N.B. = if the event that you have just attended did not take place in a science museum or centre, please skip this question and go to question 8.

- 1. Yes, and I already knew before this event
- 2. Yes, and my experience today further convinced me
- 3. Not really
- 4. Do not know
- 5. 🗌 Not applicable

PART III - SOME INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

- 6) In which year were you born? _____
- 7) Please, indicate your gender:
- 1. 🗌 Male

Sparks Capture Learning Report

- 2. 🗌 Female
- 3. Prefer not to say
- 4. Other: Please specify_____

8) What is the highest level of education that you have completed?

- 1. Primary Education
- 2. Secondary Education
- 3. Higher education (Bachelor or Master)
 4. Doctoral or higher level
- 9) How much do you agree with the following statement? (with show card with *Likert-scale*)

	l Strongly agree	2 Moderately agree	3 Slightly agree	4 Slightly disagree	5 Moderately disagree	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opinion
I am interested in science							
I am interested in health							
I read or find out about science/health on a regular basis							

THANK YOU FOR YOUR COOPERATION!

Your responses will be treated in complete confidentiality and with anonymity.

PARTICIPANT QUESTIONNAIRE FOR ACTIVITIES

PART I – ASSESSMENT OF SPARKS ACTIVITIES

1) I have just attended one of following activities (only one answer possible):

N.B.: If you have attended more events, please choose just one and answer the next questions in relation to the event of your choice.

- 1. Scenario workshop
- 2. Incubation workshop
- 3. 🗌 Hackathon
- 4. 🗌 Reverse science café
- 5. Science espresso
- 6. OPop-up Science shop

2) My impressions about the attended event...

	l Strongl y agree	2 Moderatel y agree	3 Slightl y agree	4 Slightly disagre e	5 Moderatel y disagree	6 Strongly disagre e	99 No opinio n
I felt encourage d to share my thoughts							
I took actively part into the discussion							
i talked with people that I did not know before							
I now feel more confident to participate in discussion s around health							
I feel inspired to continue the discussion after the event							

	l Strongl y agree	2 Moderatel y agree	3 Slightl y agree	4 Slightly disagre e	5 Moderatel y disagree	6 Strongly disagre e	99 No opinio n
The chosen topic was relevant to me							
The topic was presented in a thought provoking way							
There was enough information to understand the topic							
The physical location was adequate to hear participants , contribution							
I had the opportunity to hear about different point of views							
The moderator facilitated dialogue amongst participants							
There was sufficient time to engage in the discussion							
My contribution was treated equally to others'							

3) How much do you agree with the following statements?

PART II – READINESS TO ENGAGE

4) After having taken part to the activity, who do you think should play a role in Research & Innovation in the field of health? (multiple answers possible)

- 1. Individual citizens
- 2. Business & Industry
- 3. Government
- 4. Scientists
- 5. Educational community
- 6. Civil society organisations
- 7. Other, namely:_____

5) Would you like to take part to similar activities in the future?

- 1. Yes, more frequently than now
- 2. 🗌 Yes, as frequently as now
- 3. Yes, but less frequently than now
- 4. Do not know
- 5. 🗌 No, never

If you have answered 'yes', go to question 6. If you have answered 'Do not know' or 'No, never', go to question 8.

6) I would like to attend similar activities in the future if.... - Please rate the following items in terms of importance

	l Extremely important	2 Very important	3 Moderately important	4 Slightly important	5 Low Importance	6 Not important at all	99 No opinion
The topic is directly relevant to me							
The format of the event is similar to the one that I have just attended							
I have the opportunity to share my thoughts							
I can speak with experts							
I can discover new scientific tools							

Other:				

7) Do you agree with the following statement: "I find science museums and centres an appropriate place to share thoughts and debate"?

N.B. = if the event that you have just attended did not take place in a science museum or centre, please choose 'Not applicable'

- 6. Yes, and I already knew it before this event
- 7. Yes, and my experience today further convinced me
- 8. Not really
- 9. Do not know
- 10. Not applicable

PART III - SOME INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

8) In which year were you born? _____

- 9) Please, indicate your gender:
- 1. 🗌 Male
- 2. 🗌 Female
- 3. Prefer not to say
- 4. Other:_____

10) What is the highest level of education that you have completed?

- 1. Primary Education
- 2. Secondary Education
 3. Higher education (Bachelor or Master)
- 4. Doctoral or higher level

11) Do you work in any science-related field?

- 1. Yes
- 2. 🗌 No
- 3. Currently, I am not working

12) How much do you agree with the following statement?

	l Strongly agree	2 Moderately agree	3 Slightly agree	4 Slightly disagree	5 Moderately disagree	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opinion
I am interested in science							
I am interested in health							
I read or find out about science/health							

Sparks Capture Learning Report

13) In which field are you currently active? (for professional, volunteering or other reason) – multiple answers possible:

- 1. Civil society organisation
- 2. **Education**
- 3. **Research**
- 4. Industry/business
- 5. Government or public administration
- 6. **Other:**

THANK YOU FOR YOUR COOPERATION!

Your responses will be treated in complete confidentiality and with anonymity.

SHOW CARD

A show card is a visual list of answer options (e.g. Likert scale) that the interviewer will provide the respondent with to facilitate and accelerate the interview process. Please translate the options in the example below (NB: 99 is the code for the 'no option' option, not an error in the numbering):



ANNEX IV: Template for local organisers

Extracts from Deliverable 4.2.

Annex I – TEMPLATE FOR LOCAL ORGANISERS – Activities

Name of the local organiser: _____ Country: _____

Guidelines:

- Count and take note of the number of participants to each participatory activity and report it here:

	Activit							
	y 1	y 2	у З	y 4	у 5	y 6	у 7	y 8
Type of								
activity								
Number of								
participan								
ts								

TOT number of participants to all participatory activities (including invited experts):_____ TOT number of invited experts: _____

Fill-in four of the Template below after each one of the following activities:

- The **Reverse Science Café**;
- The **optional activity**;
- 2 of your own choice out of the 6 Science Espressos;

Please indicate the time and topic of **the other 4** below:

Science Espresso l	Science Espresso 2	Science Espresso 3	Science Espresso 4
Date:	Date:	Date:	Date:
Time:	Time:	Time:	Time:
Topic:	Topic:	Торіс:	Topic:

- Send KEA the four Templates filled-in + TOT number of participants within 2 weeks after the end of the Sparks activities run locally.

SEC	FION I – INFORMATION ABOUT THE ACTIVITY
Date and time of the activity	

Chosen format of the activity Main	1. Scenario workshop 2. Incubation workshop/Hackathon 3. Reverse science café 4. Science espresso 5. Pop-up Science shop						
subject/theme or guiding questions for the chosen activity							
Number of attendees for the chosen activity	Scenario workshop TOT (including invited experts): 	Incubation workshop/ Hackathon TOT (including all sub mentioned groups): Mentors: Future users: 	Reverse science café TOT (including invited experts): Number of invited experts: 	Science espresso TOT (including invited experts): 	Fop-tr Scient shop TOT (inclu all ment grouj 	ap ace ading sub ioned ps): ats: ents/ archer r rts/ holde volved	
SECT	 ION II – INDI	CATORS OF	PUBLIC EN	GAGEMEN	(T		
1. The discussion required encouragement from the	l Strongly M agree a	2 3 lodera Slighti tely agree agree	4 ly Slightly e disagre e	5 Modera St tely d disagre e	6 rongly isagre e	99 No opinion	
r							
2. The discussion easily moved forward (i.e. new issues are	l Strongly M agree a	2 3 Iodera Slighti tely agree agree	4 ly Slightly e disagre e	5 Modera St tely d disagre e	6 rongly isagre e	99 No opinion	
raised)	<u> </u>						
3. The audience expressed its willingness to be involved in	I Strongly M agree a	2 3 Iodera Slighti tely agree agree	4 ly Slightly e disagre e	5 Modera St tely d disagre e	6 rongly isagre e	99 No opinion	
activities in the							
future	1	2 2	4	5	6	٥٥	
7. The participants continued the discussion after the event	Strongly M agree	L S lodera Slight tely agree agree	y Slightly disagre e	Modera St tely d disagre e	rongly isagre e	No opinion	

		SECTION III –	OVERA	LL AS	SESSIV	IENT			
5.	In your view, did any of these factors encourage multi-actor dialogue?	The chosen	l Strongl y agree	2 Mode ratel y agree	3 Sligh tly agre e	4 Slight ly disag ree	5 Moder ately disagr ee	6 Strongly disagree	99 No opi nio n
		Content inputs from the exhibition							
		The way the topic was presented							
		The physical location							
		The presence of different actors and points of view							
		The way the moderator animated the session							
		Sufficient time to engage in the discussion							
		The way contributions were treated							
		The format of the activity							
		Other:							
	This only applies	Out of this list, ple "do's") that stimu factors" (or "don't Max 800 character 1. Yes	ase press ilated m s") and e s	ent in m ulti-acto xplain v	nore de or diale why/ho	tails the ogue ar w:	2 "succ nd the 2	cess factor 2 "unsucc	s" (or essful
	to the Reverse Science Café, the Scenario Workshop and the Pop-up Science Shop	How did you mana approach/strategy Max 600 character	ge to invo) :s	olve thei	m? (ple	ase pres	sent you.	r	
6.	Amongst the participants, were there people who have the "power" to implement ideas and take action (e.g. director, CEO, head of service	2. No What was your man not you overcome of Max 600 character	in difficul it? 'S	ty in en	gaging	decisio	n maker	s and why	<i>could</i>

	or administration) ?							
7.	What are the main outcomes resulting from this activity?	l. 🗌 Please des	New researcribe shor	arch inputs tly:	generated	d from the j	public	
		2. Please des	New (join cribe shoi	t) projects tly:				
		3. [] Please des	A new stra cribe shor	ategy/actic tly:	on plan			
		4. D	New or in cribe shor	novative co tly:	ollaboratio	ns taking s	hape	
		5. 🗍 Oti	her:					
			_					
		For each o of types implement Max 600 ch	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters	ed options plved par oplicable):	, please ex tners/stak	plain the p cholders	ourpose, th and time	e number eline for
8.	Are you overall satisfied with this activity	For each o of types implement Max 600 ch 1 Strongl y agree	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters 2 Moder ately	ed options olved par oplicable): 3 Slightl y agree	, please ex tners/stak	plain the p eholders 5 Moder ately	ourpose, th and time 6 Strongl y	e number eline for 99 No opinion
8.	Are you overall satisfied with this activity format?	For each o of types implement Max 600 ch 1 Strongl y agree	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters 2 Moder ately agree	ed options olved par oplicable): 3 Slightl y agree	, please ex thers/stak Slightl y disagre e	plain the p eholders 5 Moder ately disagre e	ourpose, th and time 6 Strongl y disagre e	e number eline for 99 No opinion
8.	Are you overall satisfied with this activity format? Overall, did the whole procedure (proposed	For each o of types implement Max 600 ch 	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters 2 Moder ately agree Yes No x 600 chara	ed options olved par oplicable): 3 Slightl y agree	, please ex thers/stake 4 Slightl y disagre e	splain the p eholders 5 Moder ately disagre e	ourpose, th and time 6 Strongl y disagre e	e number eline for 99 No opinion
8.	Are you overall satisfied with this activity format? Overall, did the whole procedure (proposed theme, methodological guidelines, training, etc.) meet your expectations?	For each o of types implement Max 600 ch 1 Strongl y agree 1. 2. Why? (max	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters 2 Moder ately agree Yes No \$ 600 chara	ed options olved par oplicable): 3 Slightl y agree	, please ex thers/stake	plain the p eholders 5 Moder ately disagre e	ourpose, th and time 6 Strongl 9 disagre e	e number eline for 99 No opinion
8. 9.	Are you overall satisfied with this activity format? Overall, did the whole procedure (proposed theme, methodological guidelines, training, etc.) meet your expectations? Are you willing to use it again in the future?	For each o of types implement Max 600 ch 	f the mark of invo ation (if ap naracters 2 Moder ately agree Yes No c 600 chara K 600 chara	ed options olved par oplicable): 3 Slightl y agree acters) 3 Slightl y agree	, please ex thers/stake 4 Slightl y disagre e U	splain the peholders	ourpose, th and time 6 Strongl y disagre e 	e number eline for 99 No opinion

ANNEX II – TEMPLATE FOR LOCAL ORGANISERS – Local partnerships, exhibition and communication

Guidelines:

- Towards the end of the exhibition period, collect feedback from the local partnership through a collective discussion during one of the four meetings foreseen or short online questionnaire and fill-in section I of the template below;
- Towards the end of the exhibition period reflect on your experience of hosting the exhibition with your team and share your thoughts in part II of the template below.
- After the end of the exhibition and activities, collect data regarding your communication outreach (online and offline) and fill-in part III of the template below.
- Send KEA the Template filled-in within 2 weeks after the end of the Sparks activities run locally

SECTION I - LOCAL PARTNERSHIPS						
Composition of the local partnership	For each member, please specify the following: Organisation, Address, Represented stakeholder group (choose between Civil society, Education, Research, Industry/business, Government or public administration, Other (please specify)), Name and role of the contact person (not mandatory),					
Involvement of the	For each partner o	or all the partne	rs, please specif	îy:		
To complete this section, local	Role activity:		in		the	
organisers are required to consult the local partnerships towards the end of the exhibition period. Local organisers may choose to organise a	Meetings organise	ed with partners	s:	300		
short online	Meetings	Date	Topic		Format	
questionnaire (for	Meeting 1					
instance on	Meeting 2					
SurveyMonkey:	Meeting 3					
onkey net)	Meeting 4					
	Changes that have activity, that direct 1. Bet place t the act 2. New	e taken place tly affect the pa ter understand to stimulate mul tivity takes plac w research inpu	(or may take pl rtner(s): ing of the sciend ti-actor dialogue e in a museum/o uts generated fro	ace) as a ce museur e (only app centre) om the pul	result of this m/centre as a plicable when plic	

	 3. New (joint) projects 4. A new strategy/action plan 5. New or innovative collaborations taking shape 6. Other: If you have marked options from 2 to 6, please explain the purpose, the number and types of partners/stakeholders involved and timeline for
	Implementation (if applicable): Max 600 characters
List of	For each member, please specify the following:
organisations	
willing to engage	Organisation, Address, Represented stakeholder group (chose between
after the project and	Civil society, Education, Research, Industry/business, Government or
manifestation of	public administration, Other (please specify)), Name and role of the contact
interest signed	
agreement. etc.)	
	SECTION II – EXHIBITION
Dates when the	From// to//
exhibition was open	
to the public	
Total number of	
visitors (based on	
ticket count)	
where did the	1. Science museum or centre
place:	Please specify the location
	name:
Which	1. Story 1
exhibit/story was	2. \Box Story 2
the most engaging	3. Story 3
for your visitors?	4. Story 4
	5. Story 5
	6. 🗌 Story 6
	7. U Story 7
	Please explain why, in your view:
Which one was the	1. U Story 1
least engaging?	2. \Box Story 2
	4. Story 5
	6. Story 6

	7. Story 7
	Please explain why, in your view:
Please provide a	What was the topic? Please describe the exhibit showcased:
detailed description	·
of your local case	
study	
	Who have you worked with to create it?
	How did you set up the team to create the local case study?
	Was the RRI approach something difficult to tackle? Why?
	If so, how did you address these difficulties?
	If so, now and you address mese dimenties:
	Please include maximum 3 high quality pictures <u>or</u> a short video (interview,
	virtual tour) of max. 2 minutes, in the form of a YouTube/Vimeo link or a
	video file.
What was the	
general impression	
or visitors or the	
(when answering	
this guestion please	
consider what you	<i>Please include a selection of max. 10 significant comments (positive and/or</i>
heard from visitors	negative) from visitors on social media, your Golden Book or any other
or reactions on your	source (please specify the source). Please translate them in English.
social media)	
After running the	
exhibition, what do	
you think about the	
approach taken by	
Sparks?	
How good are	
participatory	
research and	
citizen science as	
topics to engage	
your public?	
Compared to	
previous	
exnibition(S) on similar tonics (with	
similar formats	

what did you find	
unique in Sparks?	
What did work	
best? What did not	
work?	
Describe please	
how the exhibition	
process met vour	
expectations	
Please reflect on	
how the exhibition	
contributed to the	
understanding by	
the general public	
of a new way of	
doing science in	
the field of health	
and medicine	
In your oninion was	- to engage the public on the tonic of RRI?
the exhibition a	$1 \square \mathbf{V}_{eg}$
successful means:	$2 \square No$
successiui means.	Can you tell us what elements made this success?
	Call you tell us what elements made this success:
	- to engage the public in technology shifts in health and
	medicine?
	$2 \square No$
	wily:
Is there anything	
you would have	
changed with the	
exhibition content	
or design and the	
or design and the	
way the process	
was organiseu:	
	SECTION III – COMMUNICATION
Communication	- Website
activity	How many unique visits did your Sparks webpage/website get since its
GOLIVILY	launch?
To complete the	
section on online	·
section on onnine	
acuvilles, local	Carial madia
organisers are	- <u>Bocial media</u>
requirea to consult	Did you set up (a) separate Sparks account-s on social media?
the statistic tools	
linked to or	Z. [] No
embedded in their	If Yes
website, social media	which social
profiles and other	media?

communication	how	many	followers	did	you	get	on	each	of	them?
Google Analytics, Facebook and Twitter statistics, Hootsuite, Buffer, MailChimp etc.)	For ea liked/	ach socia /shared/1	al media, ho retweeted)	ow man po	y peop ost	le did about	the mo	ost succ Sparks	cessfu	ıl (most reach?
	- <u>Pr</u>	ess relea	ase							
	Did yo count	ou send a ry?	a press rele	ase to a	announ	ce the	exhibi	tion co	ming	to your
	То	how	man	У	people	e	was	it	t	sent?
			her online c	ommur	vication	tools	0-110147	eletter	o-ma	azzine
	etc.)?			.onninui			e-11e w	5161161,	C-111a	
	For reach	each ?	of the	m, 1	low	many	pe	ople	did	you
	- <u>Pr</u>	rinted pr	omotional n	naterial						
	How	ma	iny p	ostcard	S	did	ус	ou	dist	tribute?
	Did y maga	ou use zine,	other print	ed pro	motion	al mate	erial (printed	l new	etc.)?
	How	n	nany	copie	S	did		you		issue?
Media coverage	Please organ	e provide ised:	e the follow	ving inf	ormatio	on abo	ut the	media	a eve:	nt your
	Numb	er of me	dia invited:					-		
	Numb	er of atte	endees:							
	Please minute	e provide es) of the	e max. 3 (g event	ood qu	ality) p	oictures	<u>or</u> a .	short vi	ideo ((max. 2
	Please or rad	e attach a lio progra	ll related p ammes repo	ress cli prting of	ppings n the pr	and/or oject	r links	to artic.	les/bi	logs/TV
	Total :	number	of local med	lia repo 	orting o	n the p	roject	:		
Presentation at a local event	Please	e provide	the following th	ng infor	mation	about t	he eve	nt:		

Title:
Organiser:
City:
Date:
Number of attendees:
Audience type (e.g. policy makers, scientists, academy, etc.)
Please attach the following material:
- 3 relevant high quality photos
- press clippings
 video recording (if available)